



Journal of the Senate

State of Indiana

121st General Assembly

First Regular Session

Thirty-eighth Meeting Day

Monday Afternoon

April 1, 2019

The Senate convened at 2:04 p.m., with the President of the Senate, Suzanne Crouch, in the Chair.

Prayer was offered by Senator Travis L. Holdman.

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was led by Senator Holdman.

The Chair ordered the roll of the Senate to be called. Those present were:

Alting	Koch
Bassler	Kruse
Becker	Lanane
Bohacek	Leising
Boots	Melton <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
Bray	Merritt <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
Breaux	Messmer
Brown, L.	Mishler
Buchanan	Mrvan <input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
Buck	Niemeyer
Busch	Niezdowski
Charbonneau	Perfect
Crane	Raatz
Crider	Randolph, Lonnie M.
Doriot	Rogers
Ford, J.D.	Ruckelshaus
Ford, Jon	Sandlin
Freeman	Spartz
Garten	Stoops
Gaskill	Tallian
Glick	Taylor, G.
Grooms	Tomes
Head	Walker
Holdman	Young, M.
Houchin	Zay

Roll Call 347: present 47; excused 3. [Note: A indicates those who were excused.] The Chair announced a quorum present. Pursuant to Senate Rule 5(d), no motion having been heard, the Journal of the previous day was considered read.

REPORTS FROM COMMITTEES

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Commerce and Technology, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1015, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 10, Nays 0.

PERFECT, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Commerce and Technology, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1113, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 3, delete "for" and insert "**regarding**".

Page 1, line 4, delete "the purpose of requiring the".

Page 1, line 5, after "systems" insert "**and beacon positioning systems**".

Page 1, line 9, delete "of" and insert "**of**:"

(A)".

Page 1, line 12, after "impractical;" insert "**and**

(B) a beacon positioning system unless installation of a beacon positioning system would be impractical;".

Page 1, line 15, delete "of" and insert "**of**:"

(A)".

Page 1, line 17, after "impractical;" insert "**and**

(B) a beacon positioning system unless installation of a beacon positioning system would be impractical;".

Page 2, line 3, delete "solicit" and insert "**solicit**:"

(A)".

Page 2, between lines 6 and 7, begin a new line double block indented and insert:

"(B) at least one (1) bid for the installation of a beacon positioning system unless installation of a beacon positioning system would be impractical;".

Page 2, delete lines 7 through 8, begin a new line block indented and insert:

"(4) adopt American National Standards Institute (ANSI) and International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) standards for audio frequency induction loop system installation, maintenance, and performance; and (5) develop standards for installation and maintenance of a beacon positioning system."

(Reference is to HB 1113 as printed February 1, 2019.)

and when so amended that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 8, Nays 0.

PERFECT, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Family and Children Services, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1198, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 5, between lines 11 and 12, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 3. IC 31-9-2-22.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.25-2017, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 22.5. "Conduct a criminal history check", for purposes of IC 31-19, IC 31-26, IC 31-27, IC 31-28, IC 31-33, IC 31-34, IC 31-37, and IC 31-39-2-13.5, means to:

(1) request:

(A) the state police department to conduct a:

(i) fingerprint based criminal history background check of both national and state records data bases concerning a person who is at least eighteen (18) years of age in accordance with IC 10-13-3-27 and IC 10-13-3-39; or

(ii) national name based criminal history record check (as defined in IC 10-13-3-12.5) of a person who is at least eighteen (18) years of age as provided by IC 10-13-3-27.5; or

(B) if an individual has:

(i) a physical disability that prevents fingerprinting and a person approved by the department who is trained to take fingerprints or a qualified medical practitioner (as defined in IC 31-9-2-100.5) verifies that the individual has a disabling condition that prevents fingerprinting; or

(ii) low quality fingerprints, as a result of age, occupation, or otherwise, that prevent fingerprint results from being obtained and the individual's fingerprints have been rejected the required number of times by automated fingerprint classification equipment or rejected by a person designated by the Indiana state police department to examine and classify fingerprints;

the state police department to conduct a national name based criminal history record check (as defined in IC 10-13-3-12.5) or request the state police department to release or allow inspection of a limited criminal history (as defined in IC 10-13-3-11) and the state police in every state the individual has resided in the past five (5) years to release or allow inspection of the state's criminal history;

(2) collect each substantiated report of child abuse or neglect reported in a jurisdiction where a probation officer, a caseworker, or the department of child services has reason to believe that a person who is fourteen (14) years of age or older, or a person for whom a fingerprint based criminal history background check is required under IC 31, resided within the previous five (5) years;

(3) conduct a check of the national sex offender registry maintained by the United States Department of Justice for all persons who are at least fourteen (14) years of age; and

(4) conduct a check of local ~~law enforcement agency~~ **criminal** records in every jurisdiction where a person who is at least eighteen (18) years of age has resided within the previous five (5) years unless the department of child services or a court grants an exception to conducting this

check."

Page 5, line 20, delete "within the past" and insert ".".

Page 5, delete line 21.

Page 5, line 29, delete "within the past five (5)" and insert ".".

Page 5, delete line 30.

Page 5, line 41, delete "(IC 35-46-1-4(b))." and insert "**(IC 35-46-1-4(a) and IC 35-46-1-4(b)).**"

Page 6, line 17, delete "(28)." and insert "**(28), and a conviction of attempt within the past five (5) years and upon completion of sentencing for the following:**

(A) Battery (IC 35-42-2-1).

(B) Criminal recklessness (IC 35-42-2-2).

(C) Criminal confinement (IC 35-42-3-3).

(D) Arson (IC 35-43-1-1).

(E) Nonsupport of a dependent child (IC 35-46-1-5).

(F) Operating a motorboat while intoxicated (IC 35-46-9-6).

(G) A felony involving a weapon under IC 35-47.

(H) A felony relating to a controlled substance under IC 35-48-4.

(I) A felony under IC 9-30-5."

Page 6, line 20, strike "state." and insert "**jurisdiction.**"

Page 8, delete line 13.

Page 8, line 14, delete "(3)" and insert "**(2)**".

Page 8, line 15, delete "(4)" and insert "**(3)**".

Page 8, delete line 16.

Page 8, line 17, delete "(6)" and insert "**(4)**".

Page 8, line 18, delete "(7)" and insert "**(5)**".

Page 8, line 19, delete "(8)" and insert "**(6)**".

Page 8, line 20, delete "(9)" and insert "**(7)**".

Page 8, line 22, delete "(10)" and insert "**(8)**".

Page 8, line 23, delete "(11)" and insert "**(9)**".

Page 8, line 24, delete "or".

Page 8, line 25, delete "(12)" and insert "**(10) attempt to commit a felony listed in subdivisions (1) through (9); or (11)**".

Page 8, line 29, delete "." and insert "**and upon the individual's completion of sentencing.**".

Page 8, between lines 32 and 33, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 5. IC 31-25-4-19.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.103-2007, SECTION 46, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 19.5. (a) If a Title IV-D agency collects ~~at least five hundred dollars (\$500)~~ **of child support payments of at least the threshold amount established under 42 U.S.C. 654(6)** on behalf of an individual who has never received Title IV-A assistance, the Title IV-D agency shall collect a fee in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 654(6). The Title IV-D agency may collect the fee by issuance and implementation of an income withholding order.

(b) The Title IV-D agency shall collect the fee described in subsection (a) from one (1) of the following:

(1) Any amount of child support payments that exceeds ~~five hundred dollars (\$500)~~ **the threshold amount established under 42 U.S.C. 654(6) and** collected on behalf of the individual who applied for the services of collecting the child support payments.

(2) The parent who owes the child support obligation being enforced by the Title IV-D agency.

(3) State funds appropriated for the purpose of paying a fee under subsection (a).

SECTION 6. IC 31-27-3-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 14, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 3. (a) An applicant must apply for a child caring institution license on forms provided by the department.

(b) An applicant must submit the required information as part of the application.

(c) The applicant must submit with the application a statement attesting the following:

(1) Whether the applicant has been convicted of:

(A) a felony; or

(B) a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of children.

(2) Whether the applicant has been charged with:

(A) a felony; or

(B) a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of children;

during the pendency of the application.

(d) The department, on behalf of an applicant, or, at the discretion of the department, an applicant, shall conduct a criminal history check of the following:

(1) Each individual who is an applicant.

(2) The director or manager of a facility where children will be placed.

(3) ~~An Each~~ **Each** employee, ~~or a~~ **or** volunteer, ~~or contractor~~ **or contractor** of the applicant. ~~who has or will have direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility operated by the applicant.~~

(e) If the applicant conducts a criminal history check under subsection (d), the applicant shall:

(1) maintain records of the information it receives concerning each individual who is the subject of a criminal history check; and

(2) submit to the department a copy of the information it receives concerning each person described in subsection (d)(1) through (d)(3).

(f) If the department conducts a criminal history check on behalf of an applicant under subsection (d), the department shall:

(1) determine whether the subject of a national fingerprint based criminal history check has a record of:

(A) a conviction for a felony;

(B) a conviction for a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child; or

(C) a juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony;

(2) notify the applicant of the determination under subdivision (1) without identifying a specific offense or other identifying information concerning a conviction or juvenile adjudication contained in the national criminal history record information;

(3) submit to the applicant a copy of any state limited criminal history report that the department receives on

behalf of any person described in subsection (d); and

(4) maintain a record of every report and all information the department receives concerning a person described in subsection (d).

(g) Except as provided in subsection (h), a criminal history check described in subsection (d) is required only at the time an application for a new license or the renewal of an existing license is submitted.

(h) A criminal history check of ~~a~~ **each** person described in subsection (d)(2) or (d)(3) must be completed on or before the date the person:

(1) is employed;

(2) is assigned as a volunteer; or

(3) ~~has direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility operated by~~ **enters into, or the person's employing entity enters into, a contract with** the applicant.

(i) The applicant or facility is responsible for any fees associated with a criminal history check.

(j) The department shall, at the applicant's request, inform the applicant whether the department has or does not have a record of the person who is the subject of a criminal history check and if the department has identified the person as an alleged perpetrator of abuse or neglect. The department may not provide to the applicant any details or personally identifying information contained in any child protective services investigation report.

(k) A person who is the subject of a criminal history check conducted in accordance with this section may request the state police department to provide the person with a copy of any state or national criminal history report concerning the person.

SECTION 7. IC 31-27-3-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 15, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 5. (a) The following constitute sufficient grounds for a denial of a license application:

(1) A determination by the department of child abuse or neglect by:

(A) the applicant; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a~~ **or** volunteer, ~~or contractor~~ **or contractor** of the applicant. ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant.~~

(2) A criminal conviction of the applicant, or the director or manager of a facility where children will be placed by the applicant, of:

(A) a felony;

(B) a misdemeanor related to the health and safety of a child;

(C) a misdemeanor for operating a child caring institution, foster family home, group home, or child placing agency without a license under this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal); or

(D) a misdemeanor for operating a child care center or child care home without a license under IC 12-17.2.

(3) A determination by the department that the applicant made false statements in the applicant's application for licensure.

(4) A determination by the department that the applicant made false statements in the records required by the department.

(5) A determination by the department that:

(A) the applicant; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the applicant; ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant;~~

previously operated a home or facility without a license required under any applicable provision of this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal) or IC 12-17.2.

(6) A juvenile adjudication of the applicant for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony.

(b) An application for a license may also be denied if an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the applicant ~~who has direct contact on a regular and continuous basis with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant~~ has had any of the following:

(1) A conviction of a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8.

(2) A conviction of any other felony or a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child, unless the applicant is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.~~ **with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.**

(3) A juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony, unless the applicant is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.~~ **with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.**

(c) In determining whether to grant a waiver under subsection (b), the department shall consider the following factors:

(1) The length of time that has passed since the disqualifying conviction.

(2) The severity, nature, and circumstances of the offense.

(3) Evidence of rehabilitation.

(4) The duties and qualifications required for the proposed employment positions, ~~or volunteer assignment,~~ **or contract.**

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) or (b), if:

(1) a license application could be denied due to a criminal conviction of, or a determination of child abuse or neglect by, an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the applicant; and

(2) the department determines that the employee, ~~or volunteer,~~ **or contractor** has been dismissed ~~before the employee or volunteer has direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility operated by the applicant within a reasonable time after the applicant became aware of the conviction or determination;~~

the criminal conviction of, or determination of child abuse or neglect by, the former employee, ~~or former volunteer,~~ **or former**

contractor does not constitute a sufficient basis for the denial of a license application.

(e) The department may adopt rules to implement this section.

SECTION 8. IC 31-27-3-31, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 16, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 31. (a) The following constitute sufficient grounds for revocation of a license:

(1) A determination by the department of child abuse or neglect by:

(A) the licensee; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the licensee. ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee.~~

(2) A criminal conviction of the licensee, or the director or manager of a facility where children will be placed by the licensee, of any of the following:

(A) A felony.

(B) A misdemeanor related to the health or safety of a child.

(C) A misdemeanor for operating a child caring institution, foster family home, group home, or child placing agency without a license under this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal).

(D) A misdemeanor for operating a child care center or child care home without a license under IC 12-17.2.

(3) A determination by the department that the licensee made false statements in the licensee's application for licensure.

(4) A determination by the department that the licensee made false statements in the records required by the department.

(5) A determination by the department that:

(A) the licensee; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the licensee; ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee;~~

previously operated a home or facility without a license required under any applicable provision of this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal) or IC 12-17.2.

(6) A juvenile adjudication of a licensee for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony.

(b) A license may also be revoked if an employee, ~~or volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the licensee ~~who has direct contact on a regular and continuous basis with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee~~ has had any of the following:

(1) A conviction of a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8.

(2) A conviction of any other felony or a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child, unless the licensee is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.~~ **with regard to the employee, volunteer,**

or contractor.

(3) A juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony, unless the licensee is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.~~ **with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.**

(c) In determining whether to grant a waiver under subsection (b), the department shall consider the following factors:

- (1) The length of time that has passed since the disqualifying conviction.
- (2) The severity, nature, and circumstances of the offense.
- (3) Evidence of rehabilitation.
- (4) The duties and qualifications required for the proposed employment positions, ~~or~~ volunteer assignment, **or contract.**

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) or (b), if:

- (1) a license could be revoked due to a criminal conviction of, or a determination of child abuse or neglect by, an employee, ~~or a~~ volunteer, **or contractor** of the licensee; and
- (2) the department determines that the employee, ~~or~~ volunteer, **or contractor** has been dismissed by the licensee within a reasonable time after the licensee became aware of the conviction or determination;

the criminal conviction of, or determination of child abuse or neglect by, the former employee, ~~or~~ former volunteer, **or former contractor** does not constitute a sufficient basis for the revocation of a license.

(e) The department may adopt rules to implement this section.

SECTION 9. IC 31-27-5-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 22, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 4. (a) An applicant must apply for a group home license on forms provided by the department.

(b) An applicant must submit the required information as part of the application.

(c) An applicant must submit with the application a statement attesting the following:

- (1) Whether the applicant has been convicted of:
 - (A) a felony; or
 - (B) a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of children.
- (2) Whether the applicant has been charged with:
 - (A) a felony; or
 - (B) a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of children;

during the pendency of the application.

(d) The department on behalf of an applicant, or, at the discretion of the department, an applicant, shall conduct a criminal history check of the following:

- (1) Each individual who is an applicant.
- (2) The director or manager of a facility where children will be placed.
- (3) ~~An~~ **Each** employee, ~~or a~~ volunteer, **or contractor** of the applicant. ~~who has or will have direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be~~

~~placed in a facility operated by the applicant.~~

(e) If the applicant conducts a criminal history check under subsection (d), the applicant shall:

- (1) maintain records of the information it receives concerning each individual who is the subject of a criminal history check; and
- (2) submit to the department a copy of the information the applicant receives concerning each person described in subsection (d)(1) through (d)(3).

(f) If the department conducts a criminal history check on behalf of an applicant under subsection (d), the department shall:

- (1) determine whether the subject of a national fingerprint based criminal history check has a record of a:
 - (A) conviction for a felony;
 - (B) conviction for a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child; or
 - (C) juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony;
- (2) notify the applicant of the determination under subdivision (1) without identifying a specific offense or other identifying information concerning a conviction or juvenile adjudication contained in the national criminal history record information;
- (3) submit to the applicant a copy of any state limited criminal history report that the department receives on behalf of any person described in subsection (d); and
- (4) maintain a record of every report and all information it receives concerning a person described in subsection (d).

(g) Except as provided in subsection (h), a criminal history check described in subsection (d) is required only at the time an application for a new license or the renewal of an existing license is submitted.

(h) A criminal history check of ~~a~~ **each** person described in subsection (d)(2) or (d)(3) must be completed on or before the date ~~on which the subject of the check person:~~

- (1) is employed; ~~or~~
- (2) **is** assigned as a volunteer; or ~~has direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility operated by an applicant.~~
- (3) **enters into, or the person's employing entity enters into, a contract with the applicant.**

(i) The applicant is responsible for any fees associated with a criminal history check.

(j) The department shall, at the applicant's request, inform the applicant as to whether the department has or does not have a record of the person who is the subject of a criminal history check and whether the department has identified the person as an alleged perpetrator of abuse or neglect. The department may not provide to the applicant any details or personally identifying information contained in any child protective services investigation report.

(k) A person who is the subject of a criminal history check conducted in accordance with this section may request the state police department to provide the person with a copy of any state or national criminal history report concerning the person.

SECTION 10. IC 31-27-5-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 23, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 6. (a) The following constitute sufficient grounds for a denial of a license application:

(1) A determination by the department of child abuse or neglect by:

(A) the applicant; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer~~, **or contractor** of the applicant, ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant.~~

(2) A criminal conviction of the applicant, or the director or manager of a facility where children will be placed by the applicant, for any of the following:

(A) A felony.

(B) A misdemeanor related to the health and safety of a child.

(C) A misdemeanor for operating a child caring institution, foster family home, group home, or child placing agency without a license under this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal).

(D) A misdemeanor for operating a child care center or child care home without a license under IC 12-17.2.

(3) A determination by the department that the applicant made false statements in the applicant's application for licensure.

(4) A determination by the department that the applicant made false statements in the records required by the department.

(5) A determination by the department that:

(A) the applicant; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer~~, **or contractor** of the applicant; ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant;~~

previously operated a home or facility without a license required under any applicable provision of this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal) or IC 12-17.2.

(6) A juvenile adjudication of the applicant for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony.

(b) An application for a license may also be denied if an employee, ~~or volunteer~~, **or contractor** of the applicant ~~who has direct contact on a regular and continuous basis with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant~~ has had any of the following:

(1) A conviction of a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8.

(2) A conviction of any other felony or a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child, unless the applicant is granted a waiver by the department to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.

(3) A juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony, unless the applicant is granted a waiver

by the department to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.

(c) In determining whether to grant a waiver under subsection (b), the department shall consider the following factors:

(1) The length of time that has passed since the disqualifying conviction.

(2) The severity, nature, and circumstances of the offense.

(3) Evidence of rehabilitation.

(4) The duties and qualifications required for the proposed employment positions, ~~or volunteer assignment~~, **or contract.**

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) or (b), if:

(1) a license application could be denied due to a criminal conviction of, or a determination of child abuse or neglect by, an employee, ~~or a volunteer~~, **or contractor** of the applicant; and

(2) the department determines that the employee, ~~or volunteer~~, **or contractor** has been dismissed ~~before the employee or volunteer has direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility~~ by the applicant **within a reasonable time after the applicant became aware of the conviction or determination;**

the criminal conviction of, or determination of child abuse or neglect by, the former employee, ~~or former volunteer~~, **or former contractor** does not constitute a sufficient basis for the denial of a license application.

(e) The department may adopt rules to implement this section.

SECTION 11. IC 31-27-5-31, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 24, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 31. (a) The following constitute sufficient grounds for revocation of a license:

(1) A determination by the department of child abuse or neglect by:

(A) the licensee; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer~~, **or contractor** of the licensee. ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee.~~

(2) A criminal conviction of the licensee, or the director or manager of a facility where children will be placed by the licensee, for any of the following:

(A) A felony.

(B) A misdemeanor related to the health or safety of a child.

(C) A misdemeanor for operating a child caring institution, foster family home, group home, or child placing agency without a license under this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal).

(D) A misdemeanor for operating a child care center or child care home without a license under IC 12-17.2.

(3) A determination by the department that the licensee made false statements in the licensee's application for licensure.

(4) A determination by the department that the licensee made false statements in the records required by the

department.

(5) A determination by the department that:

(A) the licensee; or

(B) an employee, ~~or~~ **volunteer, or contractor** of the licensee; ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee;~~

previously operated a home or facility without a license required under any applicable provision of this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal) or IC 12-17.2.

(6) A juvenile adjudication of the licensee for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony.

(b) A license may also be revoked if an employee, ~~or~~ **volunteer, or contractor** of the licensee ~~who has direct contact on a regular and continuous basis with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee~~ has had any of the following:

(1) A conviction of a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8.

(2) A conviction of any other felony or a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child, unless the licensee is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection: with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.~~

(3) A juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony, unless the licensee is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection: with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.~~

(c) In determining whether to grant a waiver under subsection (b), the department shall consider the following factors:

(1) The length of time that has passed since the disqualifying conviction.

(2) The severity, nature, and circumstances of the offense.

(3) Evidence of rehabilitation.

(4) The duties and qualifications required for the proposed employment positions, ~~or~~ **volunteer assignment, or contract.**

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) or (b), if:

(1) a license could be revoked due to a criminal conviction of, or a determination of child abuse or neglect by, an employee, ~~or~~ **a volunteer, or contractor** of the licensee; and

(2) the department determines that the employee, ~~or~~ **volunteer, or contractor** has been dismissed by the licensee within a reasonable time after the licensee became aware of the conviction;

the criminal conviction of, or determination of child abuse or neglect by, the former employee, ~~or~~ **former volunteer, or former contractor** does not constitute a sufficient basis for the revocation of a license.

(e) The department may adopt rules to implement this section.

SECTION 12. IC 31-27-6-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 25, IS AMENDED TO READ AS

FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 2. (a) An applicant must apply for a child placing agency license on forms provided by the department.

(b) An applicant must submit the required information as part of the application.

(c) The applicant must submit with the application a statement attesting the following:

(1) Whether the applicant has been convicted of:

(A) a felony; or

(B) a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of children.

(2) Whether the applicant has been charged with:

(A) a felony; or

(B) a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of children;

during the pendency of the application.

(d) The department on behalf of an applicant, or, at the discretion of the department, an applicant, shall conduct a criminal history check of the following:

(1) Each individual who is an applicant.

(2) The director or manager of a facility where children will be placed.

(3) ~~An Each~~ **Each** employee, ~~or~~ **a volunteer, or contractor** of the applicant. ~~who has or will have direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility operated by the applicant.~~

(e) If the applicant conducts a criminal history check under subsection (d), the applicant shall:

(1) maintain records of the information it receives concerning each individual who is the subject of a criminal history check; and

(2) submit to the department a copy of the information it receives concerning each person described in subsection (d)(1) through (d)(3).

(f) If the department conducts a criminal history check on behalf of an applicant under subsection (d), the department shall:

(1) determine whether the subject of a national fingerprint based criminal history check has a record of a:

(A) conviction for a felony;

(B) conviction for a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child; or

(C) juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony;

(2) notify the applicant of the determination under subdivision (1) without identifying a specific offense or other identifying information concerning a conviction or juvenile adjudication contained in the national criminal history record information;

(3) submit to the applicant a copy of any state limited criminal history report that the department receives on behalf of any person described in subsection (d); and

(4) maintain a record of every report and all information the department receives concerning a person described in subsection (d).

(g) Except as provided in subsection (h), a criminal history check described in subsection (d) is required only at the time an

application for a new license or the renewal of an existing license is submitted.

(h) A criminal history check of ~~a~~ **each** person described in subsection (d)(2) or (d)(3) must be completed on or before the date ~~on which the subject of the check~~ **the person**:

(1) is employed; ~~or~~

(2) ~~is~~ assigned as a volunteer; ~~or has direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility operated by an~~

(3) ~~enters into, or the person's employing entity enters into, a contract with the~~ applicant.

(i) The applicant or facility is responsible for any fees associated with a criminal history check.

(j) The department shall, at the applicant's request, inform the applicant whether the department has or does not have a record of the person who is the subject of a criminal history check and if the department has identified the person as an alleged perpetrator of abuse or neglect. The department may not provide to the applicant any details or personally identifying information contained in any child protective investigation report.

(k) A person who is the subject of a criminal history check conducted in accordance with this section may request the state police department to provide the person with a copy of any state or national criminal history report concerning the person.

SECTION 13. IC 31-27-6-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 26, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 3. (a) The following constitute sufficient grounds for denial of a license application:

(1) A determination by the department of child abuse or neglect by:

(A) the applicant; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer, or contractor~~ of the applicant. ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant.~~

(2) A criminal conviction of the applicant, or the director or manager of a facility where children will be placed by the licensee, for any of the following:

(A) A felony.

(B) A misdemeanor related to the health and safety of a child.

(C) A misdemeanor for operating a child caring institution, foster family home, group home, or child placing agency without a license under this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal).

(D) A misdemeanor for operating a child care center or child care home without a license under IC 12-17.2.

(3) A determination by the department that the applicant made false statements in the applicant's application for licensure.

(4) A determination by the department that the applicant made false statements in the records required by the department.

(5) A determination by the department that:

(A) the applicant; or

(B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer, or contractor~~ of the

applicant; ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant;~~

previously operated a home or facility without a license required under any applicable provision of this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal) or IC 12-17.2.

(6) A juvenile adjudication of the applicant for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony.

(b) An application for a license may also be denied if an employee, ~~or volunteer, or contractor~~ of the applicant ~~who has direct contact on a regular and continuous basis with children who are under the direct supervision of the applicant~~ has had any of the following:

(1) A conviction of a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8.

(2) A conviction of any other felony or a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child, unless the applicant is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection: with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.~~

(3) A juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony, unless the applicant is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection: with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.~~

(c) In determining whether to grant a waiver under subsection (b), the department shall consider the following factors:

(1) The length of time that has passed since the disqualifying conviction.

(2) The severity, nature, and circumstances of the offense.

(3) Evidence of rehabilitation.

(4) The duties and qualifications required for the proposed employment positions, ~~or volunteer assignment, or contract.~~

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) or (b), if:

(1) a license application could be denied due to a criminal conviction of, or a determination of child abuse or neglect by, an employee, ~~or a volunteer, or contractor~~ of the applicant; and

(2) the department determines that the employee, ~~or volunteer, or contractor~~ has been dismissed ~~before the employee or volunteer has direct contact on a regular and continuing basis with a child who is or will be placed in a facility operated by the applicant~~ **within a reasonable time after the applicant became aware of the conviction or determination;**

the criminal conviction of, or determination of child abuse or neglect by, the former employee, ~~or former volunteer, or former contractor~~ does not constitute a sufficient basis for the denial of a license application.

(e) The department may adopt rules to implement this section.

SECTION 14. IC 31-27-6-28, AS AMENDED BY P.L.183-2017, SECTION 27, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 28. (a) The

following constitute sufficient grounds for revocation of a license:

(1) A determination by the department of child abuse or neglect (as defined in IC 31-9-2-14) by:

- (A) the licensee; or
- (B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the licensee. ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee.~~

(2) A criminal conviction of the licensee, or the director or manager of a facility where children will be placed by the licensee, for any of the following:

- (A) A felony.
- (B) A misdemeanor related to the health or safety of a child.
- (C) A misdemeanor for operating a child caring institution, foster family home, group home, or child placing agency without a license under this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal).
- (D) A misdemeanor for operating a child care center or child care home without a license under IC 12-17.2.

(3) A determination by the department that the licensee made false statements in the licensee's application for licensure.

(4) A determination by the department that the licensee made false statements in the records required by the department.

(5) A determination by the department that:

- (A) the licensee; or
- (B) an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the licensee; ~~who has direct contact, on a regular and continuous basis, with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee;~~

previously operated a home or facility without a license required under any applicable provision of this article (or IC 12-17.4 before its repeal) or IC 12-17.2.

(6) A juvenile adjudication of a licensee for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony.

(b) A license may also be revoked if an employee, ~~or volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the licensee ~~who has direct contact on a regular and continuous basis with children who are under the direct supervision of the licensee~~ has had any of the following:

(1) A conviction of a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8.

(2) A conviction of any other felony or a misdemeanor relating to the health and safety of a child, unless the licensee is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.~~ **with regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.**

(3) A juvenile adjudication for a nonwaivable offense, as defined in IC 31-9-2-84.8 that, if committed by an adult, would be a felony, unless the licensee is granted a waiver by the department ~~to employ or assign the person as a volunteer in a position described in this subsection.~~ **with**

regard to the employee, volunteer, or contractor.

(c) In determining whether to grant a waiver under subsection (b), the department shall consider the following factors:

- (1) The length of time that has passed since the disqualifying conviction.
- (2) The severity, nature, and circumstances of the offense.
- (3) Evidence of rehabilitation.
- (4) The duties and qualifications required for the proposed employment positions, ~~or volunteer assignment,~~ **or contract.**

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) or (b), if:

- (1) a license could be revoked due to a criminal conviction of, or a determination of child abuse or neglect by, an employee, ~~or a volunteer,~~ **or contractor** of the licensee; and
- (2) the department determines that the employee, ~~or volunteer,~~ **or contractor** has been dismissed by the licensee within a reasonable time after the licensee became aware of the conviction or determination;

the criminal conviction of, or determination of child abuse or neglect by, the former employee, ~~or former volunteer,~~ **or former contractor** does not constitute a sufficient basis for the revocation of a license.

(e) The department may adopt rules to implement this section."

Page 9, delete line 30.

Page 9, line 31, reset in roman "(i)".

Page 9, line 31, delete "(ii)".

Page 9, line 32, delete "(iii)" and insert "(ii)".

Page 9, delete line 33.

Page 9, line 34, delete "(v)" and insert "(iii)".

Page 9, line 36, delete "(vi)" and insert "(iv)".

Page 9, line 37, delete "(vii)" and insert "(v)".

Page 9, line 38, delete "(viii)" and insert "(vi)".

Page 9, line 40, delete "(ix)" and insert "(vii)".

Page 9, line 42, delete "(x)" and insert "(viii)".

Page 10, line 2, delete "(xi)" and insert "(ix)".

Page 10, line 2, strike "or".

Page 10, line 3, delete "(xii)" and insert "**(x) attempt to commit a felony listed in items (i) through (ix); or (xi)**".

Page 10, line 6, delete ";" and insert "**and upon the individual's completion of sentencing;**".

Page 11, delete line 27.

Page 11, line 28, reset in roman "(i)".

Page 11, line 28, delete "(ii)".

Page 11, line 29, delete "(iii)" and insert "(ii)".

Page 11, delete line 30.

Page 11, line 31, delete "(v)" and insert "(iii)".

Page 11, line 33, delete "(vi)" and insert "(iv)".

Page 11, line 34, delete "(vii)" and insert "(v)".

Page 11, line 35, delete "(viii)" and insert "(vi)".

Page 11, line 37, delete "(ix)" and insert "(vii)".

Page 11, line 39, delete "(x)" and insert "(viii)".

Page 11, line 41, delete "(xi)" and insert "(ix)".

Page 11, line 41, strike "or".

Page 11, line 42, delete "(xii)" and insert "**(x) attempt to commit a felony listed in items (i) through (ix); or (xi)**".

Page 12, line 3, delete ";" and insert "**and upon the individual's completion of sentencing;**".

Page 14, delete line 16.

Page 14, line 17, reset in roman "(i)".

Page 14, line 17, delete "(ii)".

Page 14, line 18, delete "(iii)" and insert "**(ii)**".

Page 14, delete line 19.

Page 14, line 20, delete "(v)" and insert "**(iii)**".

Page 14, line 22, delete "(vi)" and insert "**(iv)**".

Page 14, line 23, delete "(vii)" and insert "**(v)**".

Page 14, line 24, delete "(viii)" and insert "**(vi)**".

Page 14, line 26, delete "(ix)" and insert "**(vii)**".

Page 14, line 28, delete "(x)" and insert "**(viii)**".

Page 14, line 30, delete "(xi)" and insert "**(ix)**".

Page 14, line 30, strike "or".

Page 14, line 31, delete "(xii)" and insert "**(x) attempt to commit a felony listed in items (i) through (ix); or (xi)**".

Page 14, line 34, delete ";" and insert "**and upon the individual's completion of sentencing;**".

Page 15, between lines 13 and 14, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 18. IC 31-34-21-7.6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.124-2017, SECTION 3, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 7.6. (a) This section applies to an individual who:

(1) is leaving foster care because the individual is eighteen (18) years of age or older; and

(2) has been in foster care for at least six (6) months.

(b) Before an individual described in subsection (a) leaves foster care, the department shall provide to the individual all the following documents that are applicable to the individual:

(1) An official or certified copy of the individual's United States birth certificate.

(2) A Social Security card issued for the individual by the Social Security Administration.

(3) Insurance records.

(4) A copy of the individual's medical records.

(5) A driver's license or identification card issued by the state.

(6) Information concerning the individual's enrollment in the Medicaid program.

(7) A foster care verification form."

Page 16, delete line 19.

Page 16, line 20, delete "(iii)" and insert "**(ii)**".

Page 16, line 21, delete "(iv)" and insert "**(iii)**".

Page 16, delete line 22.

Page 16, line 23, delete "(vi)" and insert "**(iv)**".

Page 16, line 25, delete "(vii)" and insert "**(v)**".

Page 16, line 26, delete "(viii)" and insert "**(vi)**".

Page 16, line 27, delete "(ix)" and insert "**(vii)**".

Page 16, line 29, delete "(x)" and insert "**(viii)**".

Page 16, line 31, delete "(xi)" and insert "**(ix)**".

Page 16, line 32, strike "or".

Page 16, line 33, delete "(xii)" and insert "**(x) attempt to commit a felony listed in items (i) through (ix); or (xi)**".

Page 16, line 36, delete ";" and insert "**and upon the individual's completion of sentencing;**".

Page 17, between lines 15 and 16, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 20. IC 31-37-20-8, AS AMENDED BY P.L.124-2017, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 8. (a) This section applies to an individual who:

(1) is leaving foster care because the individual is at least eighteen (18) years of age; and

(2) has been in foster care for at least six (6) months.

(b) Before an individual described in subsection (a) leaves foster care, the probation officer shall provide to the individual the following documents that are applicable to the individual:

(1) An official or certified copy of the individual's United States birth certificate.

(2) A Social Security card issued for the individual by the Social Security Administration.

(3) Insurance records for the individual.

(4) A copy of the individual's medical records.

(5) The individual's driver's license or identification card issued by the state.

(6) Information concerning the individual's enrollment in the Medicaid program.

(7) A foster care verification form."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to HB 1198 as printed February 19, 2019.)

and when so amended that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 6, Nays 0.

GROOMS, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Local Government, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1214, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, delete lines 3 through 42.

Page 3, delete lines 1 through 29.

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to HB 1214 as reprinted February 19, 2019.)

and when so amended that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 9, Nays 0.

BUCK, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Elections, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1217, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 4, delete lines 12 through 13, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"(f) The director and the assistant director serve at the pleasure of the appointing clerk. The board employees serve at the pleasure of the appointing director or assistant director respectively."

(Reference is to HB 1217 as printed January 25, 2019.)
and when so amended that said bill do pass.
Committee Vote: Yeas 7, Nays 0.

WALKER, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Local Government, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1343, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, delete lines 38 through 42, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"(h) The fiscal body to which a public library described in subsection (a)(1) would be required to submit its proposed budget and property tax levy as set forth in subsection (c) or (d) (whichever is applicable) if the public library had the percentage increase described in subsection (a)(2) for the ensuing calendar year may adopt a resolution to require the public library in a year in which its proposed budget does not otherwise have the percentage increase described in subsection (a)(2) for the ensuing calendar year to nevertheless submit its proposed budget and property tax levy to the fiscal body as set forth in subsection (c) or (d) (whichever is applicable) for binding review and approval as set forth under this section if any of the following apply:

- (1) The public library's proposed operating budget that is based on tax revenue (and excluding gifts, bequests, and philanthropic funds) exceeds the public library's certified operating budget from tax revenue (and excluding gifts, bequests, and philanthropic funds) in the immediately preceding budget year by more than ten percent (10%).**
- (2) The public library's proposed property tax levy exceeds the public library's certified property tax levy in the immediately preceding year by more than ten percent (10%).**
- (3) The public library's unallocated funds exceed two hundred percent (200%) of the public library's proposed budget. Unallocated funds for purposes of this subdivision do not include:**
 - (A) gifts, bequests, and philanthropic funds;**
 - (B) funds used for debt service obligations; or**
 - (C) reserves for debt service.**

A resolution may be adopted under this subsection on or before September 1. A resolution adopted under this subsection remains in full force and effect until repealed by the fiscal body. However, the fiscal body of the city, town, or county may not reduce a public library's proposed budget or tax levy in a budget year under this subsection by more than

ten percent (10%) of the public library's operating levy in the immediately preceding budget year.

(i) Before a fiscal body may adopt a resolution under subsection (h), the fiscal body must hold a public hearing on the proposed resolution and provide the public with notice of the time and place where the public hearing will be held. The notice required by this subsection must be given in accordance with IC 5-3-1 and include the proposed resolution. In addition to the notice required by this subsection, the fiscal body shall also provide a copy of the notice to all taxing units in the city, town, or county at least thirty (30) days before the public hearing.

(j) A resolution adopted by a fiscal body under subsection (h) shall be submitted to:

- (1) the department of local government finance; and**
- (2) the public library;**

not later than five (5) days after the date the resolution is adopted."

Page 3, delete lines 1 through 13.

(Reference is to HB 1343 as reprinted February 19, 2019.)
and when so amended that said bill do pass.
Committee Vote: Yeas 5, Nays 4.

BUCK, Chair

Report adopted.

COMMITTEE REPORT

Madam President: The Senate Committee on Commerce and Technology, to which was referred Engrossed House Bill 1569, has had the same under consideration and begs leave to report the same back to the Senate with the recommendation that said bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, between the enacting clause and line 1, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 1. IC 25-0.5-1-6, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 6. IC 25-1-1.1-4 applies to an individual licensed ~~or certified~~ under IC 25-14.5 (dietitians).

SECTION 2. IC 25-0.5-2-26, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 26. IC 25-1-2-2.1 applies to ~~certifications~~ licenses held by dietitians.

SECTION 3. IC 25-0.5-3-36, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 36. IC 25-1-2-6(b) applies to the Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ licensing board.

SECTION 4. IC 25-0.5-4-9, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 9. The Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ licensing board (IC 25-14.5-2-1) is a board under IC 25-1-4.

SECTION 5. IC 25-0.5-5-20, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 20. The Indiana professional licensing agency shall perform administrative functions, duties, and responsibilities for the Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ licensing board (IC 25-14.5-2-1) under IC 25-1-5-3(a).

SECTION 6. IC 25-0.5-6-19, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 19. An individual licensed, certified, registered, or permitted by the Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ **licensing** board (IC 25-14.5-2-1) is a provider under IC 25-1-5-10.

SECTION 7. IC 25-0.5-8-30, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 30. An occupation for which a person is licensed, certified, or registered by the Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ **licensing** board (IC 25-14.5-2-1) is a regulated occupation under IC 25-1-7.

SECTION 8. IC 25-0.5-9-32, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 32. The Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ **licensing** board (IC 25-14.5-2-1) is a board under IC 25-1-8.

SECTION 9. IC 25-0.5-10-9, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 9. The Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ **licensing** board (IC 25-14.5-2-1) is a board under IC 25-1-8-6.

SECTION 10. IC 25-0.5-11-19, AS ADDED BY P.L.3-2014, SECTION 5, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 19. The Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ **licensing** board (IC 25-14.5-2-1) is a board under IC 25-1-9."

Page 7, between lines 32 and 33, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 17. IC 25-14.5-1-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 2. "Board" refers to the Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ **licensing** board established by IC 25-14.5-2-1.

SECTION 18. IC 25-14.5-1-4 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]. Sec. 4: "~~Certified dietitian" refers to a person certified under this article to practice dietetics. Activities of a certified dietitian do not include the medical differential diagnoses of the health status of an individual.~~

SECTION 19. IC 25-14.5-1-8 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 8. "Examination" means an examination for the ~~certification~~ **licensure** of dietitians used or approved by the board. The examination may be created by the board, created by a person as determined by and approved by the board, or created in part by the board and in part by a person or entity other than the board.

SECTION 20. IC 25-14.5-1-8.8 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 8.8. "**Licensed dietitian**" means an individual:

(1) **certified under this article before July 1, 2019; or**
 (2) **licensed under this article after June 30, 2019;**
to practice dietetics. Activities of a licensed dietitian do not include the medical differential diagnoses of the health status of an individual.

SECTION 21. IC 25-14.5-1-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.131-2015, SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 10. "Medically

prescribed diet" means a diet that is:

- (1) prescribed when specific food or nutrient levels need to be monitored or altered, or both, as a component of a treatment regimen for an individual whose health status is impaired or at risk due to disease, injury, or surgery; and
- (2) performed as initiated by or in consultation with a physician licensed to practice medicine in Indiana or ordered by a ~~qualified~~ **licensed** dietitian.

SECTION 22. IC 25-14.5-1-13 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 13. "Practice experience" means a preprofessional, documented, supervised practice in dietetics services that is acceptable to the board in compliance with requirements for ~~certification~~ **licensure**. It may be or may include a documented, supervised practice experience that is a component of the educational requirements for ~~certification~~ **licensure**.

SECTION 23. IC 25-14.5-1-15 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]. Sec. 15: "~~Qualified dietitian" means an individual who is certified under this article.~~

SECTION 24. IC 25-14.5-2-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 1. The Indiana dietitians ~~certification~~ **licensing** board is established.

SECTION 25. IC 25-14.5-2-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 2. The board consists of seven (7) members appointed by the governor as follows:

- (1) Four (4) members who are ~~certified under this article~~ **licensed dietitians** and currently provide and have provided services in the practice of dietetics in Indiana for a minimum of three (3) years.
- (2) One (1) member who is a physician licensed under IC 25-22.5.
- (3) One (1) member who is a registered nurse licensed under IC 25-23.
- (4) One (1) member representing the public who is a resident of Indiana and has never been associated with dietetics in any way other than as a consumer.

SECTION 26. IC 25-14.5-2-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 5. (a) The board shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 establishing standards for:

- (1) professional responsibility or a code of ethics for the profession of dietetics;
- (2) applicant qualifications of a ~~certified~~ **licensed** dietitian;
- (3) the administration of this article;
- (4) the number of hours of continuing education needed for renewal of ~~certification~~ **licensure** and the procedures for approving continuing education courses and programs; and
- (5) establishing fees under IC 25-1-8-2 as described in subsection (b).

(b) The board shall establish, charge, and collect fees under IC 25-1-8-2 for:

- (1) the filing of an application for a ~~certificate~~ **license** under this article;
- (2) the original issuance of a ~~certificate~~ **license** under this article;
- (3) a renewal of a ~~certificate~~ **license** issued in accordance with this article;

(4) the replacement of a ~~certificate license~~ or renewal ~~certificate license~~ lost or destroyed; and

(5) any other purposes prescribed by IC 25-1-8-2.

SECTION 27. IC 25-14.5-3-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 1. The board may require a person who applies for a **certified licensure as a dietitian under this article** to have:

(1) completed a major course of study in human nutrition, nutrition education, food and nutrition, and dietetics or food systems management; and

(2) received a baccalaureate or higher degree from a regionally accredited college or university located in the United States or its territories.

SECTION 28. IC 25-14.5-3-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 2. The board may require a person who:

(1) applies for a ~~certificate licensure~~ as a ~~certified~~ dietitian **under this article**; and

(2) has obtained the person's education outside of the United States and its territories;

to have the person's academic degree or degrees validated by an organization approved by the board. The validating organization must state that the degree is equivalent to a baccalaureate or master's degree conferred by a regionally accredited college or university located in the United States.

SECTION 29. IC 25-14.5-3-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 3. The board may require a person who applies for a ~~certificate licensure~~ as a ~~certified~~ dietitian **under this article** to have completed a documented, supervised practice experience of not less than nine hundred (900) hours under the supervision of a ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian or a registered dietitian.

SECTION 30. IC 25-14.5-4-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.180-2018, SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 1. To qualify for a ~~certificate license~~ under this article, an individual must do the following:

(1) Satisfy the requirements of IC 25-14.5-3.

(2) Satisfactorily complete an application for ~~certification, licensure~~, furnished by the board, in accordance with the rules adopted by the board.

(3) Pay the application, examination, and ~~certification licensure~~ fees established by the board.

(4) Except to the extent that section 4 of this chapter applies, successfully pass the qualifying examination adopted by the board as described in IC 25-14.5-5.

SECTION 31. IC 25-14.5-4-2 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 2. Except as provided in section 3 of this chapter, the board shall issue a ~~certificate license~~ to an individual who:

(1) meets the conditions set forth in section 1 of this chapter; and

(2) is otherwise qualified for ~~certification licensure~~ under this article.

SECTION 32. IC 25-14.5-4-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 3. The board may refuse to issue a ~~certificate license~~ to an applicant for

~~certification licensure~~ under section 2 of this chapter if:

(1) the applicant has been disciplined by an administrative agency in another state or jurisdiction, and the board determines that the violation for which the applicant was disciplined has a direct bearing on the applicant's ability to practice competently in Indiana; or

(2) the applicant has been convicted of:

(A) an act that would constitute a ground for disciplinary sanction under IC 25-1-9; or

(B) a crime that has a direct bearing on the applicant's ability to practice competently.

SECTION 33. IC 25-14.5-4-4 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 4. (a) Except as provided in subsection (b), the board may issue a ~~certificate license~~ to an applicant for ~~certification licensure as a dietitian under this article~~ if the applicant presents evidence that the applicant has been issued a ~~certificate license~~ in a state that has requirements for ~~certification licensure~~ that are, by the board's determination, equivalent to the requirements for ~~certification licensure~~ in Indiana. An applicant applying for a ~~certificate license~~ under this subsection is not required to take an examination given by the board under IC 25-14.5-5.

(b) The board may refuse to issue a ~~certificate license~~ under subsection (a) if the applicant has failed an examination given by the board under IC 25-14.5-5.

(c) The fee an applicant for ~~certification licensure~~ must pay for a ~~certificate license~~ issued under subsection (a) shall be set by the board under IC 25-14.5-2-5.

SECTION 34. IC 25-14.5-4-5 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 5. All ~~certificates licenses issued under this article~~ shall be effective when issued by the board.

SECTION 35. IC 25-14.5-4-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 6. (a) A ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian must display the ~~certificate license~~ in a conspicuous part of the office in which the ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian practices nutrition therapy services.

(b) Whenever practicing the profession of dietetics outside of or away from the office or place of business, the ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian shall make available to each patient the ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian's name, office address, and the number of the ~~certificate license~~.

SECTION 36. IC 25-14.5-6-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.177-2015, SECTION 34, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 1. (a) ~~Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e)~~, A certificate issued by the board **before July 1, 2019**, expires on a date established by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in the next even-numbered year following the year in which the certificate was issued.

(b) An individual **who holds a certificate issued by the board before July 1, 2019**, may **renew or convert the certificate to a license to practice dietetics** by paying a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of the certificate. **The board shall consider an application for renewal of a certificate under this section as an application for renewal of a license issued under this article.**

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee on or before the expiration date of a certificate, the certificate becomes invalid.

(d) This section expires January 1, 2021.

SECTION 37. IC 25-14.5-6-1.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: **Sec. 1.1. (a) Subject to IC 25-1-2-6(e), a license issued under this article expires on a date established by the agency under IC 25-1-5-4 in the next even-numbered year following the year in which the license was issued.**

(b) An individual who holds a license issued under this article may renew the license by:

- (1) paying, on or before the expiration date of the license, a renewal fee set by the board; and**
- (2) subject to IC 25-1-4-3, providing a sworn statement attesting that the licensed dietitian has completed the continuing education required by the board.**

(c) If an individual fails to pay a renewal fee under subsection (b) on or before the expiration date of the individual's license, the license becomes invalid.

SECTION 38. IC 25-14.5-6-2 IS REPEALED [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]. **Sec. 2: A certified dietitian may renew a certificate by:**

- (1) paying a renewal fee as set by the board; and**
- (2) subject to IC 25-1-4-3, providing a sworn statement attesting that the certified dietitian has completed the continuing education required by the board.**

IC 25-1-2-6(e) applies to the issuance and renewal of a certificate under this article.

SECTION 39. IC 25-14.5-6-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.177-2015, SECTION 36, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: **Sec. 3. (a) The board shall mail an application for renewal to a certified dietitian At least ninety (90) days before the expiration date on which the certified dietitian's of a certificate expires: issued under this article before July 1, 2019, the board shall mail an application for renewal to the certificate holder.**

(b) The application must be mailed to the certified dietitian's certificate holder's most recent address as it appears on the record of the board.

(c) A certified dietitian filing for renewal of An individual who holds a certificate must: issued under this article before July 1, 2019, may convert the certificate to a license to practice dietetics by:

- (1) satisfactorily complete completing the renewal application;**
- (2) return returning the application to the board; and**
- (3) submit submitting to the board the required renewal fee;**

before expiration of the certified dietitian's current individual's certificate.

(d) Upon receipt of the application and fee submitted under subsection (c), the board shall:

- (1) verify the accuracy of the application;**
- (2) determine whether the continuing education requirement has been met; and**
- (3) verify that all other requirements under this article have been met.**

(e) When the board is satisfied that all conditions under subsection (d) have been met, the board shall issue to the applicant a notice of certificate renewal license to practice dietetics that shall be valid for two (2) years.

(f) This section expires January 1, 2021.

SECTION 40. IC 25-14.5-6-3.1 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: **Sec. 3.1. (a) The board shall mail an application for renewal to a licensed dietitian at least ninety (90) days before the date on which the licensed dietitian's license expires.**

(b) The application must be mailed to the licensed dietitian's most recent address as it appears on the record of the board.

(c) A licensed dietitian filing for renewal of a license must:

- (1) satisfactorily complete the renewal application;**
- (2) return the application to the board; and**
- (3) submit to the board the required renewal fee;**

before expiration of the licensed dietitian's current license.

(d) Upon receipt of the application and fee submitted under subsection (c), the board shall:

- (1) verify the accuracy of the application;**
- (2) determine whether the continuing education requirement has been met; and**
- (3) verify that all other requirements under this article have been met.**

(e) When the board is satisfied that all conditions under subsection (d) have been met, the board shall issue to the applicant a notice of license renewal that is valid for two (2) years.

SECTION 41. IC 25-14.5-6-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.105-2008, SECTION 30, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: **Sec. 4. (a) A certificate license may be reinstated by the board not later than three (3) years after its expiration if the applicant for reinstatement meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6(c).**

(b) A certificate license that has been expired for more than three (3) years may be reinstated by the board if the holder of the certificate license satisfies the requirements for reinstatement under IC 25-1-8-6(d).

SECTION 42. IC 25-14.5-6-6 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: **Sec. 6. (a) The board may classify a certificate license as inactive if the board receives written notification from a certified licensed dietitian stating that the certified licensed dietitian will not maintain an office or practice dietetics in Indiana.**

(b) The renewal fee for an inactive certificate license must be one-half (1/2) the certificate license renewal fee set by the board under IC 25-14.5-2-5(b)(3).

(c) The holder of an inactive certificate license is not required to fulfill continuing education requirements set by the board.

SECTION 43. IC 25-14.5-6-7 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: **Sec. 7. The board may issue a certificate license to the holder of an inactive certificate license under section 6 of this chapter if the applicant meets the requirements under IC 25-1-8-6.**

SECTION 44. IC 25-14.5-7-1 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: **Sec. 1. Except as**

provided in section 3 of this chapter, an individual who ~~is~~ **does not certified hold a certificate issued under this article before July 1, 2019, or a license issued under this article after June 30, 2019,** may not:

- (1) profess to be a ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian; or
- (2) imply by words or letters such as "~~CD~~" "**LD**" that the individual is a ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian.

SECTION 45. IC 25-14.5-7-3 IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 3. (a) A dietitian registered by the commission on dietetic registration may use the title "registered dietitian" and the designation "RD" but may not profess to be a ~~certified licensed~~ dietitian when practicing dietetics in Indiana without ~~being certified by the board.~~ **holding a certificate issued under this article before July 1, 2019, or a license issued under this article after June 30, 2019.**

(b) Nothing in this article may be construed to prohibit or limit any person from:

- (1) disseminating free information;
- (2) conducting a class or seminar; or
- (3) giving a speech related to nutrition.

(c) Nothing in this article may be construed to require direct third-party reimbursement to ~~persons certified a person who holds a certificate issued under this article before June 30, 2019, or a license issued under this article after July 1, 2019.~~"

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to HB 1569 as printed January 29, 2019.) and when so amended that said bill do pass.

Committee Vote: Yeas 9, Nays 0.

PERFECT, Chair

Report adopted.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the following resolution be adopted:

SCR 58 Senator Messmer
Honoring the 50th anniversary of the Otwell H.S. Millers boys basketball Washington sectional championship.

BRAY

Motion prevailed.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING

Senate Concurrent Resolution 58

Senate Concurrent Resolution 58, introduced by Senator Messmer:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION honoring the 50th anniversary of the Otwell High School Millers boys basketball Washington sectional championship.

Whereas, On March 1, 1969, the Otwell High School Millers boys basketball team, led by head coach Howard "Andy" Anderson and assistant coach Richard Helton, won the Washington Sectional by defeating the North Daviess Cougars 80 - 77;

Whereas, The Otwell Millers team members included Tim Garland, Rick Weisman, Mike Vaughn, Steve Meadors, Steve Barrett, Bob Whaley, Jim DeMotte, Dave Elkins, Neal Pauw, Erwin Traylor, Tim Teague, Ellis Gray, and team managers Nick Meadors and Walter Hazelton;

Whereas, Coach Anderson was the only coach to ever coach the team, instructing team members in the game of basketball from elementary school through high school, and team members have referred to Coach Anderson as the "Bobby Knight" before there was a Bob Knight due to his intensity and excellence as a coach;

Whereas, There is great significance in the Otwell Millers' triumph because it predated class basketball in Indiana and included defeating schools with much larger student populations than Otwell, which had an enrollment of 148 students;

Whereas, The Washington High School gym, "The Hatchet House", is the 13th largest high school gym in the United States and was filled to capacity throughout the 1969 sectional tournament;

Whereas, The Millers defeated the Washington Hatchets, who claimed home-court advantage, in the first game of the sectional with a score of 82 - 66, and went on to defeat the Barr Reeve Vikings 54 - 39 in the second sectional game;

Whereas, In the final game of the sectional, North Daviess took an early lead and held the lead for the majority of the game;

Whereas, With 6:47 remaining in the game, the Millers' chances became even more bleak with leading scorer and rebounder Rick Weisman fouling out;

Whereas, Coach Anderson called on Jim DeMotte to replace Weisman, and the team continued to fight their way back to take the lead in the final moments of the game, ultimately claiming victory;

Whereas, Throughout the sectional tournament, the Millers never wavered and consistently outplayed their opponents offensively and defensively;

Whereas, Coach Anderson employed a man-to-man defense and full-court press for the majority of all three games, demonstrating his players' athleticism, stamina, and determination;

Whereas, Steve Barrett and Rick Weisman were leading scorers for the Millers during the season and the sectional;

Whereas, Steve Barrett remains one of Indiana's highest career point earners for Indiana high school boys basketball, points scored without the benefit of the three point line;

Whereas, The 1969 sectional victory for the Otwell Millers was the only sectional title in the school's history, with the school closing in 1974 to consolidate with Pike Central High School;

Whereas, The Otwell Millers also won the 1969 Patoka Valley Conference Championship prior to the sectional tournament; and

Whereas, In 2019, the Indiana Basketball Hall of Fame commemorated the Otwell Millers 1969 boys basketball team for the 50th anniversary of its sectional championship by featuring the team in the winter issue of the Hall of Fame's History Magazine: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly honors the 50th anniversary of the Otwell High School Millers 1969 boys basketball sectional championship win over the North Daviess Cougars.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit copies of this Resolution to each team member, coach, and manager of the 1969 Otwell High School Millers boys basketball team.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution. House sponsor: Representative Lindauer.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 59

Senate Concurrent Resolution 59, introduced by Senator Messmer:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION memorializing Charles Beckner.

Whereas, Charles Conrad Beckner was born December 13, 1920, and grew up in Princeton in Gibson County, Indiana;

Whereas, Charles enlisted in the United States Army in 1937 prior to World War II, and then transferred to the United States Navy in 1939, where he served as a medical corpsman;

Whereas, Deployed to Fort Mills in the Philippines, Charles was a part of Motor Torpedo Boat Squadron Three ("MTBRON-Three"), based out of Cavite, and assisted in defending the Philippines during World War II;

Whereas, Charles was a member of the crew that evacuated General Douglas MacArthur and his family from Corregidor to Mindanao, on March 11, 1942;

Whereas, As a result of MTBRON-Three's mission in rescuing General MacArthur, Charles was awarded a Silver Star for gallantry in action with citations that the crew executed "with

marked skill and coolness a mission of major strategic importance and of the most hazardous nature in the face of greatly superior enemy forces";

Whereas, Charles was also involved as a guerilla opposing the Japanese during the war;

Whereas, Charles received numerous service awards and citations, including a Presidential Unit Citation Ribbon for three different units, Unit Badge and Oak Leaf Cluster for his service in defense of the Philippines, a Bronze Star for meritorious service in 1993, and Charles was awarded a Purple Heart for wounds received in action on May 6, 1945;

Whereas, At the time of his retirement in 1969, Charles was the most senior ranking Chief Warrant Officer 4 in the U.S. Navy;

Whereas, Even though he never lived in Princeton following his military service, and

Whereas, Charles devoted his life in service to the United States, and passed away on February 17, 2009, at the age of 88: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly memorializes Charles Beckner and appreciates his service to the State of Indiana and the United States.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the family of Charles Beckner.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by standing vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution. House sponsor: Representative Hostettler.

Senate Concurrent Resolution 60

Senate Concurrent Resolution 60, introduced by Senator Messmer:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION memorializing James and Naomi Beckner.

Whereas, James Beckner was born July 6, 1917, and grew up in Princeton, Indiana;

Whereas, Naomi (Sturm) Beckner was born August 10, 1919, and grew up in Clinton, Indiana;

Whereas, James enlisted in the United States Navy in 1942 during World War II, where he served as a torpedoman's mate first class, and Naomi was appointed to the United States Navy in 1943 as a reserve nurse;

Whereas, After enlisting, James was deployed to sea to serve on the U.S.S. Colhoun on picket station one;

Whereas, While deployed, James was severely injured during the Battle of Okinawa, when the Japanese bombed the U.S.S. Colhoun four times, sinking the ship and killing 51 and wounding 18 servicemen;

Whereas, Naomi was assigned to the Navy Nurse Corps and served at the Great Lakes Naval Service attending to patients who were severely injured during the War, where she met James;

Whereas, After the war, James and Naomi married and returned to Princeton, where they started a family and a business, Beckner Jewelry Store; and

Whereas, Both being proud of their service in the United States Navy, James passed away on April 10, 1977, and Naomi passed on November 26, 2016: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the House of Representatives concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly memorializes James and Naomi Beckner and appreciates their service to the State of Indiana and the United States.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to the family of James and Naomi Beckner.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by standing vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution. House sponsor: Representative Hostettler.

House Concurrent Resolution 43

House Concurrent Resolution 43, sponsored by Senator Crider:

A CONCURRENT RESOLUTION recognizing Indiana Task Force One.

Whereas, Indiana Task Force One is one of 28 urban search and rescue teams in the country;

Whereas, The team consists of 70 multifaceted and cross-trained personnel who serve in six major functional areas: search, rescue, medical, hazardous materials, logistics, and planning;

Whereas, Indiana Task Force One was created in 1992 and is sponsored by the city of Indianapolis under the Indianapolis Fire Department and 29 other participating agencies, many of which are located in central Indiana;

Whereas, Indiana Task Force One is comprised of emergency responders from fire departments in and around Marion County

and civilians, including physicians, paramedics, engineers, damage-structure specialists, and search dogs and their handlers;

Whereas, Indiana Task Force One has been deployed three times in Indiana to assist local emergency personnel in search and rescue operations after tornadoes in Klondike, Evansville, and Henryville;

Whereas, The task force has also deployed to national disasters, including: the Oklahoma City bombing, the attack on the World Trade Center on September 11, 2001, Hurricane Katrina, Hurricane Harvey in Houston, Texas, Hurricane Irma in Florida, Hurricane Maria in Puerto Rico, Hurricane Olivia in Hawaii, Hurricane Florence in North Carolina, and Hurricane Michael in Florida;

Whereas, The task force deployed to assist search and rescue operations with other federal and state of Texas personnel in the Houston, Beaumont, and Port Arthur, Texas, metro areas;

Whereas, The task force also provided support to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) by sending additional personnel to support decontamination of personnel and equipment during Hurricanes Harvey and Irma; and

Whereas, The selfless and heroic efforts of these brave men and women help keep Americans safe during times of natural or manmade disaster: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the House of Representatives of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana, the Senate concurring:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana General Assembly honors and recognizes Indiana Task Force One for their commitment to public safety and disaster response in the state of Indiana and the United States of America.

SECTION 2. That the Principal Clerk of the House of Representatives transmit copies of this resolution to Indiana State Representative Randall Frye for distribution.

The resolution was read in full and adopted by voice vote. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the resolution.

MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE

Madam President and Members of the Senate: I have on Thursday, March 28, 2019, signed Senate Enrolled Acts: 4, 375, 380, 512, 545, 551, 596 and 632.

RODRIC D. BRAY
President Pro Tempore

**MESSAGE FROM THE
PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE**

Madam President and Members of the Senate: I have on Thursday, March 28, 2019, signed House Enrolled Acts: 1060, 1075, 1080, 1084, 1094, 1173, 1280, 1295, 1296, 1345, 1411, 1440, 1492, 1500, 1605 and 1613.

RODRIC D. BRAY
President Pro Tempore

**MESSAGE FROM THE
PRESIDENT PRO TEMPORE**

Madam President and Members of the Senate: I have on Monday, April 1, 2019, signed House Enrolled Acts: 1053.

RODRIC D. BRAY
President Pro Tempore

**MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
OF THE SENATE**

Members of the Senate: I have on the 1st day of April, 2019, signed House Enrolled Acts: 1005, 1187, 1173, 1280, 1295, 1492 and 1605.

SUZANNE CROUCH
Lieutenant Governor

**MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT
OF THE SENATE**

Members of the Senate: I have on the 1st day of April, 2019, signed Senate Enrolled Acts: 112, 142, 156, 208 and 231.

SUZANNE CROUCH
Lieutenant Governor

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has passed House Concurrent Resolution 43 and the same is herewith transmitted for further action.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has passed Senate Concurrent Resolution 55 and the same is herewith returned to the Senate.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has passed, without amendments, Engrossed Senate Bill 130 and the same is herewith returned to the Senate.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE

Madam President: I am directed by the House to inform the Senate that the House has passed, with amendments, Engrossed Senate Bills 333 and 336 and the same are herewith returned to the Senate for concurrence.

M. CAROLINE SPOTTS
Principal Clerk of the House

**REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT
PRO TEMPORE**

Madam President: I hereby report that Senator Zay has been excused from voting on Engrossed House Bill 1237 pursuant to the Report of the Committee on Ethics adopted on March 7, 2019.

BRAY

Report adopted.

RESOLUTIONS ON SECOND READING

Senate Resolution 52

Senator Tallian called up Senate Resolution 52 for second reading. The resolution was read a second time and adopted by voice vote.

**ENGROSSED HOUSE BILLS
ON SECOND READING**

Engrossed House Bill 1003

Senator Mishler called up Engrossed House Bill 1003 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1100

Senator L. Brown called up Engrossed House Bill 1100 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1114

Senator Head called up Engrossed House Bill 1114 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title.

SENATE MOTION
(Amendment 1114-4)

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1114 be amended to read as follows:

Page 4, line 20, delete "without authorization," and insert "**having been denied entry by a law enforcement officer**,".

Page 4, line 21, delete "that:" and insert "**that is marked off with barrier tape or other physical barriers**,".

Page 4, delete lines 22 through 28.

Page 4, line 30, delete "(c)." and insert "**(c) or (h)**,".

Page 5, after line 38, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"(h) It is a defense to a prosecution under subsection (b) that:

(1) the person reasonably believed that the person's:

- (A) child;
- (B) grandchild;
- (C) parent;
- (D) grandparent; or
- (E) spouse;

was in the marked off area; and
 (2) the person entered the area out of concern for the well-being of the person's:

- (A) child;
- (B) grandchild;
- (C) parent;
- (D) grandparent; or
- (E) spouse;

if the person is not charged as a defendant in connection with the offense, if applicable, that caused the area to be secured by barrier tape or other physical barriers."

(Reference is to EHB 1114 as printed March 27, 2019.)

SANDLIN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION
 (Amendment 1114-2)

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1114 be amended to read as follows:

Page 3, delete lines 34 through 42.

Page 4, delete lines 1 through 3.

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1114 as printed March 27, 2019.)

TALLIAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION
 (Amendment 1114-1)

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1114 be amended to read as follows:

Page 4, between lines 3 and 4, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 3. IC 31-30-3-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.187-2015, SECTION 26, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 4. Upon motion of the prosecuting attorney and after full investigation and hearing, the juvenile court shall waive jurisdiction if it finds that:

- (1) the child is charged with an act that would be murder **or attempted murder** if committed by an adult;
- (2) there is probable cause to believe that the child has committed the act; and
- (3) the child was at least twelve (12) years of age when the act charged was allegedly committed;

unless it would be in the best interests of the child and of the safety and welfare of the community for the child to remain within the juvenile justice system."

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1114 as printed March 27, 2019.)

HOUCHIN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION
 (Amendment 1114-3)

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1114 be amended to read as follows:

Page 4, between lines 3 and 4, begin a new paragraph and insert:

"SECTION 3. IC 31-30-3-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.187-2015, SECTION 26, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019]: Sec. 4. Upon motion of the prosecuting attorney and after full investigation and hearing, the juvenile court ~~shall~~ **may** waive jurisdiction if it finds that:

- (1) the child is charged with an act that would be murder **or attempted murder** if committed by an adult;
- (2) there is probable cause to believe that the child has committed the act; ~~and~~
- (3) the child was at least twelve (12) years of age when the act charged was allegedly committed;
- (4) the child is beyond rehabilitation under the juvenile justice system; and**
- (5) unless it would be in the best interests of the child and of the safety and welfare of the community for the child to remain within the juvenile justice system: that the child stand trial as an adult."**

Renumber all SECTIONS consecutively.

(Reference is to EHB 1114 as printed March 27, 2019.)

TALLIAN

Motion failed. The bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1115

Senator Perfect called up Engrossed House Bill 1115 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1128

Senator Doriot called up Engrossed House Bill 1128 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1175

Senator Charbonneau called up Engrossed House Bill 1175 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1211

Senator L. Brown called up Engrossed House Bill 1211 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1308

Senator Bassler called up Engrossed House Bill 1308 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1341

Senator L. Brown called up Engrossed House Bill 1341 for

second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1349

Senator Houchin called up Engrossed House Bill 1349 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1394

Senator Breaux called up Engrossed House Bill 1394 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1443

Senator Mishler called up Engrossed House Bill 1443 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1545

Senator Charbonneau called up Engrossed House Bill 1545 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1547

Senator Leising called up Engrossed House Bill 1547 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title.

SENATE MOTION (Amendment 1547-1)

Madam President: I move that Engrossed House Bill 1547 be amended to read as follows:

Page 3, line 3, delete "consent before providing the additional care." and insert "**consent, if applicable, before:**

- (1) the provision of prenatal care;**
- (2) the delivery of the baby; and**
- (3) the provision of postpartum care."**

(Reference is to EHB 1547 as printed March 29, 2019.)

LEISING

Motion prevailed. The bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1552

Senator Sandlin called up Engrossed House Bill 1552 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

Engrossed House Bill 1660

Senator Garten called up Engrossed House Bill 1660 for second reading. The bill was read a second time by title. There being no amendments, the bill was ordered engrossed.

ENGROSSED HOUSE BILLS ON THIRD READING

Engrossed House Bill 1025

Senator Buck called up Engrossed House Bill 1025 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning transportation and to make an appropriation.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 348: yeas 47, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1118

Senator Buck called up Engrossed House Bill 1118 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning courts and court officers.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 349: yeas 47, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1141

Senator Bohacek called up Engrossed House Bill 1141 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 350: yeas 42, nays 5. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1165

Senator Leising called up Engrossed House Bill 1165 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT concerning agriculture and animals.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 351: yeas 45, nays 2. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1185

Senator Crider called up Engrossed House Bill 1185 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning labor and safety.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 352: yeas 42, nays 5. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1192

Senator Koch called up Engrossed House Bill 1192 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 353: yeas 46, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1237

Senator Freeman called up Engrossed House Bill 1237 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 354: yeas 40, nays 6. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1330

Senator Doriot called up Engrossed House Bill 1330 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning property.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 355: yeas 47, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1358

Senator L. Brown called up Engrossed House Bill 1358 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning criminal law and procedure.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 356: yeas 46, nays 1. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1600

Senator Lanane called up Engrossed House Bill 1600 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT concerning human services.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 357: yeas 47, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

Engrossed House Bill 1638

Senator Leising called up Engrossed House Bill 1638 for third reading:

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning agriculture and animals.

The bill was read a third time by sections and placed upon its passage. The question was, Shall the bill pass?

Roll Call 358: yeas 47, nays 0. The bill was declared passed. The question was, Shall the title of the bill remain the title of the act? There being no objection, it was so ordered. The Chair instructed the Secretary to inform the House of the passage of the bill.

**MOTIONS TO CONCUR
IN HOUSE AMENDMENTS**

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 141.

HOUCHIN

Roll Call 359: yeas 46, nays 1. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 170.

LEISING

Roll Call 360: yeas 47, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 176.

GROOMS

Roll Call 361: yeas 47, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 201.

L. BROWN

Roll Call 362: yeas 38, nays 8. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 240.

FREEMAN

Roll Call 363: yeas 45, nays 1. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 381.

KOCH

Roll Call 364: yeas 46, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 424.

CRIDER

Roll Call 365: yeas 46, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 471.

KOCH

The President of the Senate yielded the gavel to Senator Bray.

Roll Call 366: yeas 39, nays 7. Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate concur with the House amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 488.

M. YOUNG

Roll Call 367: yeas 46, nays 0. Motion prevailed.

RESOLUTIONS ON FIRST READING**Senate Resolution 63**

Senate Resolution 63, introduced by Senators Kruse and L. Brown:

A SENATE RESOLUTION urging Congress to propose the Parental Rights Constitutional Amendment to the States for ratification.

Whereas, The right of parents to direct the upbringing, education, and care of their children is a fundamental right protected by the Constitution of the United States;

Whereas, The United States has historically relied first and foremost on parents to meet the real and constant needs of children;

Whereas, The interests of children are best served when parents are free to make childrearing decisions about education, religion, and other areas of a child's life without state interference;

Whereas, The United States Supreme Court in Wisconsin v. Yoder, 406 U.S. 205 (1972), has held that "[t]his primary role of the parents in the upbringing of their children is now established beyond debate as an enduring American tradition";

Whereas, However, the United States Supreme Court in Troxel v. Granville, 530 U.S. 57 (2000), produced six different opinions on the nature and enforceability of parental rights under the United States Constitution;

Whereas, The Troxel decision has created confusion and ambiguity about the fundamental nature of parental rights in the laws and society of the several States;

Whereas, Representative Jim Banks of the State of Indiana has introduced House Joint Resolution 36 in the 116th Congress, proposing an amendment to the United States Constitution to prevent erosion of the enduring American tradition of treating parental rights as fundamental rights;

Whereas, The amendment proposed by H.J. Res. 36 will add explicit text to the Constitution of the United States to protect in perpetuity the rights of parents as they are now enjoyed, without substantive change to current state or federal laws respecting these rights; and

Whereas, Such enumeration of these rights in the text of the Constitution will preserve them from being infringed upon by the shifting ideologies and interpretations of the United States Supreme Court: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That the Indiana Senate urges Congress to propose the Parental Rights Constitutional Amendment to the States for ratification.

SECTION 2. The Secretary of the Senate is hereby directed to transmit copies of this Resolution to the President of the United States Senate, the Speaker of the United States House of Representatives, and each member of the Indiana congressional delegation.

The resolution was read in full and referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Senate Resolution 64

Senate Resolution 64, introduced by Senator Ruckelshaus:

A SENATE RESOLUTION urging Legislative Services Agency ("LSA") to conduct a comprehensive, data-focused study examining factors that have led to school shootings and violence in Indiana and the United States.

Whereas, A safe learning environment for Indiana's children, teachers, and other school personnel is of paramount importance;

Whereas, Although school shootings are most often in the news, the increase in school violence is not limited to shootings but includes other forms of weapons and violence;

Whereas, Many behavioral and mental health factors, in addition to factors in a student's personal life away from school, may contribute to the drastic increase in school shootings and violence, but there has been no comprehensive study of school shootings and violence that examines underlying behavioral and mental health factors;

Whereas, Today, more than ever before, it is essential that education policymakers, lawmakers, law enforcement agencies, public safety and emergency preparedness officials, parents, and others study recent incidents of school shootings and violence to gather an understanding of factors which have led to violence in our schools; and

Whereas, In light of increased shootings and violence in schools and other populated settings, it is imperative to have a thorough study of motivating factors which lead to school shootings and violence in order to develop comprehensive solutions: Therefore,

Be it resolved by the Senate of the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

SECTION 1. That Legislative Services Agency is urged to conduct a comprehensive, data-focused study examining factors which contribute to and lead to school shootings and violence in Indiana and the United States, including behavioral and mental health factors.

SECTION 2. That LSA shall issue to the legislative council a final report containing the study committee's findings and recommendations in an electronic format under IC 5-14-6 not later than November 1, 2019.

The resolution was read in full and referred to the Committee on Homeland Security and Transportation.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Buck be added as coauthor of Senate Resolution 13.

M. YOUNG

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Jon Ford and Lanane be added as coauthors of Senate Resolution 13.

M. YOUNG

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Koch be added as second author of Senate Resolution 35.

CRANE

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Bassler, Becker, Bohacek, Boots, Bray, Breaux, L. Brown, Buchanan, Buck, Busch, Charbonneau, Crane, Crider, Doriot, J.D. Ford, Jon Ford, Freeman, Garten, Gaskill, Glick, Grooms, Head, Holdman, Houchin, Koch, Kruse, Lanane, Leising, Melton, Merritt, Mishler, Mrvan, Niemeyer, Niezgodski, Perfect, Raatz, Lonnie M. Randolph, Rogers, Ruckelshaus, Sandlin, Spartz, Stoops, Tallian, G. Taylor, Tomes, Walker, M. Young and Zay be added as coauthors of Senate Concurrent Resolution 59.

MESSMER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Alting, Bassler, Becker, Bohacek, Boots, Bray, Breaux, L. Brown, Buchanan, Buck, Busch, Charbonneau, Crane, Crider, Doriot, J.D. Ford, Jon Ford, Freeman, Garten, Gaskill, Glick, Grooms, Head, Holdman, Houchin, Koch, Kruse, Lanane, Leising, Melton, Merritt, Mishler, Mrvan, Niemeyer, Niezgodski, Perfect, Raatz, Lonnie M. Randolph, Rogers, Ruckelshaus, Sandlin, Spartz, Stoops, Tallian, G. Taylor, Tomes, Walker, M. Young and Zay be added as coauthors of Senate Concurrent Resolution 60.

MESSMER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Crane be added as second sponsor of House Concurrent Resolution 43.

CRIDER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Bohacek be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1010.

CRIDER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Houchin be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1034.

HOLDMAN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1100.

L. BROWN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1115.

PERFECT

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1125.

KOCH

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators L. Brown and Tallian be added as cosponsors of Engrossed House Bill 1150.

M. YOUNG

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Buck be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1165.

LEISING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1175.

CHARBONNEAU

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Doriot be added as second sponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1185.

CRIDER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Crane be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1192.

KOCH

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1209.

HEAD

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Crane be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1211.

L. BROWN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Becker be added as second sponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1246.

GROOMS

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Rogers be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1284.

TOMES

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1349.

HOUCHIN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Jon Ford be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1394.

BREAUX

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1394.

BREAUX

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senators Lanane and Glick be added as cosponsors of Engrossed House Bill 1394.

BREAUX

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Mishler be added as third sponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1444.

CHARBONNEAU

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Holdman be added as second sponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1482.

CRIDER

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1545.

CHARBONNEAU

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1552.

SANDLIN

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Buck be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1638.

LEISING

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that Senator Lonnie M. Randolph be added as cosponsor of Engrossed House Bill 1660.

GARTEN

Motion prevailed.

**MOTIONS TO DISSENT
FROM HOUSE AMENDMENTS**

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move that the Senate dissent to the House Amendments to Engrossed Senate Bill 228 and that a conference committee be appointed to confer with a like committee of the House.

CHARBONNEAU

Motion prevailed.

SENATE MOTION

Madam President: I move we adjourn until 1:30 p.m., Tuesday, April 2, 2019.

MESSMER

Motion prevailed.

The Senate adjourned at 5:16 p.m.

JENNIFER L. MERTZ
Secretary of the Senate

SUZANNE CROUCH
President of the Senate